Devon

County Council

Phil Norrey
Chief Executive

To: The Chair and Members of the County Hall
Development Management Topsham Road
Committee Exeter
Devon
EX2 4QD
(See below)
Your ref : Date : 10 September 2019 Email: 01392 382299
Our ref : Please ask for : Gerry Rufolo

DEVELOPMENT MANAGEMENT COMMITTEE

Wednesday, 18th September, 2019

A meeting of the Development Management Committee is to be held on the above date at 2.15 pm in
the Committee Suite - County Hall to consider the following matters.

P NORREY
Chief Executive

AGENDA

PART 1 - OPEN COMMITTEE

1 Apologies for Absence

2 Minutes

Minutes of the Meeting held on 5 June 2019 (previously circulated)

3 ltems Requiring Urgent Attention

Items which in the opinion of the Chairman should be considered at the meeting as matters of
urgency.

MATTERS FOR DECISION

4 County Council Development: Teignbridge District: Provision of a new link road connecting the
A382 to West Golds Way, Land between the A382 and West Golds Way near the Newton Abbot
Hospital, Newton Abbot (Pages 1 - 22)

Report of the Chief Planner (PTE/19/32), attached

Electoral Divisions(s): Bovey Rural; Newton Abbot
North



County Council Development: Teignbridge: Construction of a single storey extension to the
existing school building and the alteration of the existing grass playing field to a 3G pitch, including
associated landscaping and car parking, Chudleigh Church of England Community Primary
School, Lawn Drive, Chudleigh (Pages 23 - 40)

Report of the Chief Planner (PTE/19/33), attached
Electoral Divisions(s): Chudleigh & Teign Valley

County Matter Waste: South Hams District: Construction of a waste transfer building; asbestos
compound; waste treatment plan; weighbridge; parking for five additional cars and associated
landscaping and drainage of waste transfer site; and land raise operations (importation of
585,000m3 of inert waste material over a 10 years period, requiring a change of use from
agriculture (16.25 hectares) to waste, incorporating landscape restoration), Challonsleigh Farm,
Smithaleigh, Plymouth

The Chief Planner to report the receipt of the above planning application and that it is considered
appropriate for Members to visit the site prior to determination.

Recommendation: That Members visit the site in advance of consideration of a report to be made
to a future meeting of the Development Management Committee.

Electoral Divisions(s): Bickleigh & Wembury
OTHER MATTERS

Delegated Action - Schedules (to include ROMPS Actions) and Summary Schedule (Pages 41 -
44)

Report of the Chief Planner (PTE/18/34), attached
Electoral Divisions(s): All Divisions

PART Il - ITEMS WHICH MAY BE TAKEN IN THE ABSENCE OF THE PRESS AND PUBLIC
Nil.




Membership

Councillors J Brook (Chair), Y Atkinson, S Aves, R Bloxham, J Hook, A Connett, G Gribble, | Hall (Vice-
Chair), L Hellyer, J Hodgson, R Hosking, T Inch, P Sanders, C Slade and J Yabsley

Declaration of Interests

Members are reminded that they must declare any interest they may have in any item to be considered at
this meeting, prior to any discussion taking place on that item.

Access to Information

Any person wishing to inspect any minutes, reports or lists of background papers relating to any item on this
agenda should contact Gerry Rufolo.

Agenda and minutes of the Committee are published on the Council’s Website and can also be accessed
via the Modern.Gov app, available from the usual stores.

Webcasting, Recording or Reporting of Meetings and Proceedings

The proceedings of this meeting may be recorded for broadcasting live on the internet via the ‘Democracy
Centre’ on the County Council’'s website. The whole of the meeting may be broadcast apart from any
confidential items which may need to be considered in the absence of the press and public. For more
information go to: http://www.devoncc.public-i.tv/core/

In addition, anyone wishing to film part or all of the proceedings may do so unless the press and public are
excluded for that part of the meeting or there is good reason not to do so, as directed by the Chairman. Any
filming must be done as unobtrusively as possible from a single fixed position without the use of any
additional lighting; focusing only on those actively participating in the meeting and having regard also to the
wishes of any member of the public present who may not wish to be fiimed. As a matter of courtesy,
anyone wishing to film proceedings is asked to advise the Chair or the Democratic Services Officer in
attendance so that all those present may be made aware that is happening.

Members of the public may also use Facebook and Twitter or other forms of social media to report on
proceedings at this meeting. An open, publicly available Wi-Fi network (i.e. DCC) is normally available for
meetings held in the Committee Suite at County Hall. For information on Wi-Fi availability at other
locations, please contact the Officer identified above.

Public Participation

Any member of the public resident in the administrative area of the County of Devon may make a
presentation to the Committee on a planning application being considered by the Committee, or any
consultation on a proposal by a Government Department (but not when the County Council is consulted on
a proposal by a District Council) or a Review of Old Minerals Permissions applications.

Any request to make a presentation must be given to the Office of the Chief Executive's Directorate by 12
noon on the fourth working day before the date of the meeting. The name of the person making the
presentation will be recorded in the minutes. For further information please contact Exeter 01392 382299.

Emergencies

In the event of the fire alarm sounding leave the building immediately by the nearest available exit, following
the fire exit signs. If doors fail to unlock press the Green break glass next to the door. Do not stop to collect
personal belongings, do not use the lifts, do not re-enter the building until told to do so.

Mobile Phones

Please switch off all mobile phones before entering the Committee Room or Council Chamber

If you need a copy of this Agenda and/or a Report in another
format (e.g. large print, audio tape, Braille or other
languages), please contact the Information Centre on 01392
380101 or email to: centre@devon.gov.uk or write to the
Democratic and Scrutiny Secretariat at County Hall, Exeter,
EX2 4QD.

)

Induction loop system available



http://www.devoncc.public-i.tv/core/
mailto:centre@devon.gov.uk

NOTES FOR VISITORS

All visitors to County Hall, including visitors to the Committee Suite and the Coaver Club conference and meeting rooms
are requested to report to Main Reception on arrival. If visitors have any specific requirements or needs they should
contact County Hall reception on 01392 382504 beforehand. Further information about how to get here can be found at:
https://new.devon.gov.uk/help/visiting-county-hall/. Please note that visitor car parking on campus is limited and space
cannot be guaranteed. Where possible, we encourage visitors to travel to County Hall by other means.

SatNav — Postcode EX2 4QD

Walking and Cycling Facilities

County Hall is a pleasant twenty minute walk from Exeter City Centre. Exeter is also one of six National Cycle
demonstration towns and has an excellent network of dedicated cycle routes — a map can be found at:
https://new.devon.gov.uk/travel/cycle/. Cycle stands are outside County Hall Main Reception and Lucombe House

Access to County Hall and Public Transport Links

Bus Services K, J, T and S operate from the High Street to County Hall (Topsham Road). To return to the High Street
use Services K, J, T and R. Local Services to and from Dawlish, Teignmouth, Newton Abbot, Exmouth, Plymouth and
Torbay all stop in Barrack Road which is a 5 minute walk from County Hall. Park and Ride Services operate from Sowton,
Marsh Barton and Honiton Road with bus services direct to the High Street.

The nearest mainline railway stations are Exeter Central (5 minutes from the High Street) and St David’s and St Thomas'’s
both of which have regular bus services to the High Street. Bus Service H (which runs from St David’s Station to the High
Street) continues and stops in Wonford Road (at the top of Matford Lane shown on the map) a 2/3 minute walk from
County Hall, en route to the RD&E Hospital (approximately a 10 minutes walk from County Hall, through Gras Lawn on
Barrack Road).

Car Sharing
Carsharing allows people to benefit from the convenience of the car, whilst alleviating the associated problems of
congestion and pollution. For more information see: https://liftshare.com/uk/community/devon.

Car Parking and Security

There is a pay and display car park, exclusively for the use of visitors, entered via Topsham Road. Current charges are:
Up to 30 minutes — free; 1 hour - £1.10; 2 hours - £2.20; 4 hours - £4.40; 8 hours - £7. Please note that County Hall
reception staff are not able to provide change for the parking meters.

As indicated above, parking cannot be guaranteed and visitors should allow themselves enough time to find alternative
parking if necessary. Public car parking can be found at the Cathedral Quay or Magdalen Road Car Parks (approx. 20
minutes walk). There are two disabled parking bays within the visitor car park. Additional disabled parking bays are
available in the staff car park. These can be accessed via the intercom at the entrance barrier to the staff car park.

= Wonford Road "’{3,
@ @ EXETER
~ lawn 2 ST DYIDS EXERER
i o access 1o 6%
Aokl petes CENTRAL BUS STATION
3 T o =8 R
Ll =% [ = 2 SN .o
F O\ - ) Arpee | 1= Q) Busstogs E = = 83785
(GHECN B glS. et | s Ty
| offeesmi gl -EM“ House @ cyde parking 2 \ MAGDALEN RD. -
2 % L~ _R“EP‘"’" Showes faciities 1 COUNTY =<
Main & £ ndeimacsing | & EXE HALL |5
Building BRIDGES =
i @ @ ST.THOMAS ]
Entrgnce ® ) STATION  /a377 TO COUNTESS
H Topsham Road H { WEAR & M5
«to Exeter City Centre ® @ ‘to Topsham/ Countess Wear »

NB @ @ Denotes bus stops

Fire/[Emergency Instructions

In the event of a fire or other emergency please note the following instructions. If you discover a fire, immediately inform
the nearest member of staff and/or operate the nearest fire alarm. On hearing a fire alarm leave the building by the
nearest available exit. The County Hall Stewardesses will help direct you. Do not stop to collect personal belongings and
do not use the lifts. Assemble either on the cobbled car parking area adjacent to the administrative buildings or in the car
park behind Bellair, as shown on the site map above. Please remain at the assembly point until you receive further
instructions. Do not re-enter the building without being told to do so.

First Aid
Contact Main Reception (extension 2504) for a trained first aider.



https://new.devon.gov.uk/help/visiting-county-hall/
https://new.devon.gov.uk/travel/cycle/
https://liftshare.com/uk/community/devon

Agenda Item 4

PTE/19/32

Development Management Committee
18 September 2019

County Council Development

Teignbridge District: Provision of a new link road connecting the A382 to West Golds
Way, Land between the A382 and West Golds Way near the Newton Abbot Hospital,
Newton Abbot

Applicant: Devon County Council

Application No: 19/01210/DCC

Date application received by Devon County Council: 14 June 2019

Report of the Chief Planner

Please note that the following recommendation is subject to consideration and
determination by the Committee before taking effect.

Recommendation: It is recommended that planning permission is granted subject to
the conditions set out in Appendix | of this report (with any subsequent minor
changes to the conditions being agreed in consultation with the Chair and Local
Members).

1. Summary

1.1 This report relates to the provision of a new link road, including pedestrian and cycle
facilities and associated landscaping, between West Golds Way and the already
permitted Whitehill Cross roundabout on the A382.

1.2 The main material planning considerations in the determination of the proposed
development are: compliance with relevant planning policy; traffic and transportation
considerations; impact on the landscape and visual amenity; impact on nature
conservation/habitats; impact on flood risk; impact on residential amenity; climate
change and sustainability considerations; and impact on the historic environment and
archaeology.

1.3 The planning application, representations received and consultation responses are
available to view on the Council website under reference DCC/4131/2019 or by
clicking on the following link: https://planning.devon.gov.uk/PlanDisp.aspx?AppNo=
DCC/4131/2019.

2. The Proposal/Background

2.1 In 2017, a planning application (DCC/3851/2016 / 16/01336/DCR3) was approved for
‘Alterations to widen, as well as straighten the horizontal and vertical alignment of the
A382. Including provision of dual carriageway between Drumbridges and Trago
Roundabout; widening of the carriageway to 10m from Trago Mills Roundabout to
White Hills Cross; provision of a 3.0m wide pedestrian and cycle way alongside the
widened road; and provision of a new route connecting the A382 to West Golds Way
near the new Newton Abbot Hospital site (Jetty Marsh I1)’.

2.2  The approved alignment for the proposed link road between the A382 and West

Golds Way encroaches on public open space, north of the Orleigh Cross housing
development.

Page 1


https://planning.devon.gov.uk/PlanDisp.aspx?AppNo=%20DCC/4131/2019
https://planning.devon.gov.uk/PlanDisp.aspx?AppNo=%20DCC/4131/2019

Agenda ltem 4

2.3

24

2.5

26

2.7

2.8

29

2.10

This new proposal allows for the realignment (to the north/east) of the previously
approved link road, avoiding the loss of the aforementioned public open space. The
scheme forms part of the overall A382 highway corridor improvements, which are
intended to increase network capacity and provide facilities for cyclists.

The link between the A382 and West Golds Way aims to mitigate the impact of
development traffic on Churchill’'s roundabout, reducing congestion and increasing
capacity for traffic accessing Newton Abbot town centre. The proposed development
will contribute to the objectives of the previously approved A382 scheme, which are
to:

e deliver development to the west of Newton Abbot;

e improve journey times to the west of Newton Abbot;

e improve safety on the A382; and

e encourage the use of sustainable modes of transport.

This proposal is comprised of the construction of approximately 380 metres of
highway, the vertical and horizontal alignment of which is based on upon a 30mph
speed limit with a setting defined as urban rather than rural.

The proposed highway is designed to be 6.5 metres wide with a 3.0 metres wide
footway/cycleway adjacent and associated verges. The carriageway and
footway/cycleway will be constructed on an embankment where it passes through the
functional floodplain of the River Teign. In order to raise the carriageway above the
predicted flood level, providing a safe/dry route to the community hospital in the event
of an extreme flood, the embankment is constructed 4.5m above natural ground level
with slopes of 1 in 2.5.

The alignment of the highway has been designed to minimise the impact on the
functional floodplain, whilst maximising the offset from the residential properties at
Orleigh Cross. The height of the embankment has been set at 0.6m above the
predicted flood levels, with its overall height minimised as far as possible, given the
need to tie in with existing road levels at each end of the link road.

The footway/cycleway is proposed to be located to the south/west of the highway in
order to link in to the existing footway/cycleway at West Golds Way, and the
proposed footway/cycleway alongside the A382. The previously approved
footway/cycleway was designed at a lower elevation to the proposed highway;
however, this proposal has amended this, proposing the footway/cycleway to be
located at the same level as the highway but with a 0.5m offset from the carriageway.
This provides continuity to the design of the existing facilities at West Golds Way;
increases the resilience of the route to flooding; and improves the perception of
personal safety for route users.

Existing field access points are proposed to be closed and replaced with new access
points created from the northern and southern roundabout arms serving Old Exeter
Road.

To mitigate for the loss of flood storage associated with the embankment footprint,
the historically filled area adjacent to West Golds Way will be reduced in height and
serve as compensatory flood storage. Where suitable, the excavated material will be
used for construction of the embankment to reduce the need for offsite disposal and
import of fill materials. Surface water runoff generated by the proposed development
will be managed with use of Sustainable Drainage Systems (SuDS) with flows

Page 2



2.1

212

213

3.1

3.2

3.3

3.4

3.5

3.6

3.7

3.8

Agenda Item 4

discharged at a restricted rate to the Blatchford Brook and excess surface water
stored within a detention basin, providing long term storage. Water quality will be
managed by a series of sediment traps and bioretention areas.

Proposed lighting is comprised of 8m lighting columns on the north-east side of the
road, tying in with existing lighting on West Golds Way.

Comprehensive landscape and ecological mitigation is proposed including:

e deciduous woodland and woodland edge planting on the proposed embankments
to integrate the road in to the landscape; screen moving traffic; and provide
replacement ecological habitat;

e tree planting to replace Poplars protected by Tree Preservation Orders;

e marshy grassland to replace the habitat lost at the edge of the functional
floodplain;

e enhancement of the SuDS pond and flood compensation area with ponds
containing permanent water; a native species-rich grassland mix; wet woodland;
native marginal planting and willow scrub; and

o seeding of verges with a native wildflower mix.

The application is Environmental Impact Assessment (EIA) development and is
accompanied by an Environmental Statement (ES).

Consultation Responses

Teignbridge District Council (Planning): No objection.

Teignbridge District Council Environmental Health Officer: No response received,

however it is noted in the Teignbridge District Council planning response that the
Environmental Health Officer has not raised any objections.

Dartmoor National Park Authority: No objection.

Newton Abbot Town Council: No objection.

Teigngrace Parish Council: Object to the application, as there is no provision for

traffic management through the village of Teigngrace and for Greycoat Lane during
the works. The road through Teigngrace is heavily used by cyclists, pedestrians and
horses, which do not mix well with heavy traffic. This road is also prone to flooding
and used for cattle movements. The junction with Greycoat Lane is being eroded by
large vehicles and the Parish Council have received complaints about the size of
vehicles using this junction and eroding the banks, which support the properties on
either side. Teigngrace Parish Council would like a speed limit imposed through the
village and restrictions on vehicle size both through the village and on Greycoat
Lane, and need assurances that the traffic will be managed correctly throughout the
works and discouraged from coming through the village of Teigngrace.

Historic England: No comments to make on this application.

Natural England: No comments to make on this application.

Environment Agency: No objection subject to the inclusion of planning conditions to
secure:

e implementation of the submitted Flood Risk Assessment (FRA);

Page 3



Agenda ltem 4

3.9

3.10

3.11

3.12

3.13

3.14

3.15

4.1

o detailed design of the box culvert to retain passage for otters;

e creation of new habitat to compensate for habitat loss; and

e submission and agreement of a Construction Environment Management Plan
(CEMP)

DCC Highways Development Management: No objection.

DCC Ecology: No objection subject to the inclusion of a planning conditions requiring
an update of the Landscape & Ecology Management Plan (LEMP) and Construction
Environment Management Plan (CEMP), undertaking of pre-construction surveys,
securing the provision of offsite mitigation and the implementation of the lighting
scheme.

DCC Landscape: The proposals are acceptable on landscape grounds subject to

conditions covering:

e protection of trees and hedgerows prior to, during, and after construction;

e submission of detailed landscape proposals, specifications and an associated
Landscape & Ecology Management Plan (LEMP); and

e submission of detailed sustainable drainage features for approval.

DCC Historic Environment: No objections subject to a planning condition requiring
the submission of a programme of archaeological mitigation.

DCC Flood Risk: No objection subject to the inclusion of planning condition covering

submission of:

o the detailed design of the proposed permanent surface water drainage
management system;

e the detailed design of the proposed surface water drainage management system
which will serve the development site for the full period of its construction; and

o details of the exceedance pathways and overland flow routes across the site in
the event of rainfall in excess of the design standard of the proposed surface
water drainage management system.

DCC Minerals Policy: The application site falls within the Mineral Safeguarding Area
for the ball clay resource, with Policy M2 of the Devon Minerals Plan presuming
against development that would sterilise or constrain the mineral resource.

However, the Bovey Basin ROMP (99/2080/01/9DCC) includes the application site
within the West Golds ‘area of no further mineral working’ which is subject to
Condition 8: “No mineral workings or ancillary operations shall be carried out within
the areas edged and shaded red identified on Approved Plan BB/2/98.” This reflects
the previous history of underground working beneath the application site.

Given the prohibition on further working beneath the application site, it can be
concluded that the underlying mineral resource is not economic, and the proposed
development is therefore consistent with Policy M2.

Local Member (Bovey Rural): No objection.

Advertisement/Representations

The application was advertised in accordance with the statutory publicity
arrangements by means of a site notice, notice in the press and notification of

Page 4



4.2

4.3

5.1

5.2

Agenda Item 4

neighbours by letter. As a result of these procedures, nine letters/emails of
representation have been received:

Six responses object to the proposal on the following grounds:

additional pollution caused by the development;

increased impact of the development on air quality;

increased noise impact on properties in Orleigh Cross;

destruction of woodland/green areas;

increased risk of flooding/the location of the development in the floodplain;
cost/use of public funds;

congestion (which will be displaced to elsewhere in Newton Abbot); and
increased likelihood of accidents/fatalities.

Three responses make general comments relating to the following:

o difficulties for merging traffic (turning right) from the hospital and Orleigh Cross
joining the new road without traffic lights;

¢ the scheme will not alleviate the main traffic issue at Balls Corner roundabout;
there may be tailbacks at busy times and

e provision of a footpath between the Orleigh Cross estate and Newton Abbot town
centre.

Planning Policy Considerations

In considering this application the County Council, as County Planning Authority, is
required to have regard to the provisions of the Development Plan insofar as they are
material to the application, and to any other material considerations. Section 38 (6)
of the Planning and Compulsory Purchase Act 2004 requires that where regard is to
be had to the Development Plan, the determination shall be in accordance with the
Development Plan unless material considerations indicate otherwise. In this case,
the Development Plan policies are summarised below and the most relevant are
referred to in more detail in Section 6.

Teignbridge Local Plan 2013-2033 (Adopted May 2014):

Policy Description
S1A Presumption in favour of Sustainable Development
S1 Sustainable Development Criteria
S2 Quality Development
S5 Infrastructure
S6 Resilience
S7 Carbon Emission Targets
S9 Sustainable Transport
S10 Transport Networks
S11 Pollution
S14 Newton Abbot
S22 Countryside
WE11 Green Infrastructure
WE13 Protection of Recreational Land and Buildings
EN1 Strategic Open Breaks
EN2A Landscape Protection and Enhancement
EN3 Carbon Reduction Plans

Page 5



Agenda ltem 4

5.3

5.4

5.5

6.1

6.2

6.3

6.4

6.5

EN4 Flood Risk

EN5 Heritage Assets

EN6 Air Quality

EN7 Contaminated Land

EN8 Biodiversity Protection and Enhancement

EN9 Important Habitats and Features

EN11 Legally Protected and Priority Species

EN12 Woodlands, Trees and Hedgerows (previously Trees and
Hedgerows)

HT1 Heart of Teignbridge — Movement

HT3 Heart of Teignbridge — Green Infrastructure

NA2 Whitehill

Devon Waste Plan 2011-2031 (Adopted December 2014):

Policy Description
W4 Waste Prevention

Devon Minerals Plan 2011-2033 (Adopted February 2017)

Policy Description

M2 Mineral Safeguarding Areas

Other material considerations are the National Planning Policy Framework
(February 2019) and Planning Practice Guidance.

Comments/Issues

The material planning considerations in the determination of this application are
discussed below.

Policy Context

The Teignbridge Local Plan sets out the policies, proposals and actions to meet the
environmental, social and economic challenges facing the area between 2013 and
2033 and provides a strategy for the distribution and level of development and
supporting infrastructure.

Policy HT1 (Heart of Teignbridge — Movement) of the Teignbridge Local Plan
supports the improvement of connectivity and accessibility within the Heart of
Teignbridge. In particular, this policy promotes the delivery of comprehensive
walking and cycle routes that connect within the Heart of Teignbridge and to nearby
towns and villages; and the Jetty Marsh Phase 2 link road, subject to proposals
demonstrating that there will be no adverse effect on the integrity of the South Hams
SAC.

Policy S14 (Newton Abbot) broadly supports the improvement of the existing road
network and provision new road infrastructure where necessary, supported by
investment to create comprehensive, connected walking and cycling routes and
public transport services.

The scheme contributes to the five key objectives set out in the Devon and Torbay

Local Transport Plan 3 (2011 - 2026) to achieve the vision for a low carbon transport
system that offers choice and encourages sustainable travel behaviour:

Page 6



6.6

6.7

6.8

6.9

6.10

6.11

Agenda Item 4

o deliver and support new development and economic growth — bringing forward
around 2,500 new houses and employment land at Forches Cross, Whitehill and
Newton Abbot town centre and 800 new houses to the west of Kingsteignton;

o make the best use of the transport network and protect the existing transport
asset by prioritising maintenance — making better use of available road space
and increasing capacity;

e work with communities to provide safe, sustainable and low carbon choices — by
delivering cycle and pedestrian facilities between new developments and Newton
Abbot, giving residents a viable choice to use sustainable modes of transport;

e strengthen and improve the public transport network — by reducing delay on
principle County Bus Routes towards Newton Abbot; and

o make Devon the ‘place to be naturally active’ — by improving pedestrian and cycle
facilities which will build on existing walking and cycle network and encourage
access between Heathfield, Newton Abbot and proposed housing developments.

In the determination of this application members should balance this high level of
strategic policy support against any adverse impacts of the proposed development
(discussed in more detail below).

Traffic and Transportation Considerations

Policy S10 (Transport Networks) of the Teignbridge Local Plan states that the
function of the existing transport network and facilities will be protected, including the
locally important road network, part of which is the A382.

Teignbridge District Council's adopted Local Plan (2013-2033) features a large
amount of development (2,300 homes) to the West of Newton Abbot. This
development will have direct access onto the A382 and the A383 with a Link Road
connecting the two through the development. Also included in the Local Plan is 18
hectares of land for employment, part of which is allocated at Forches Cross which
will be accessed from the A382. These developments will significantly increase the
growth along the corridor, from vehicles traveling to and from Newton Abbot as well
as vehicles traveling further via the A38 to Exeter and Plymouth.

The construction of the Jetty Marsh link would help alleviate future congestion, and
without this link, the additional traffic generated by widening the A382 would get held
up at Churchill’'s Roundabout, Impeding traffic flows on the A382.

It is considered that the scheme will have an overall positive impact on the highway
network by reducing journey times (including for public transport) and providing a
safe off-road shared path for pedestrians and cyclists, linking in with existing and
planned infrastructure from Newton Abbot to Drumbridges. This path will enable
walking and cycling journeys to be made to key sites such as Heathfield and Newton
Abbot, in addition to future developments at Forches Cross, Houghton Barton and
Whitehill.

Teigngrace Parish Council have objected to the application, as there is no provision
for traffic management through the village of Teigngrace and for Greycoat Lane
during the works. Whilst this is noted, the construction of the roundabout at the
Exeter Road junction is already approved under the main A382 planning permission
(DCC/3851/2016). Consequently, the works proposed under the current application
can be constructed ‘offline’ from the existing public highway without affecting any
existing traffic flows or causing additional traffic through the village of Teigngrace.

Page 7



Agenda ltem 4

6.12

6.13

6.14

6.15

In conclusion the proposed development will deliver the new road connection (Jetty
Marsh 1) which is identified in the adopted local plan and facilitate planned residential
and employment development, also identified in the local plan. The proposed
provides comprehensive new facilities for pedestrians and cyclists, linking in to
existing and planned infrastructure. The new route will protect the function of the
A382 and improve the resilience of this route. Consequently, it is considered that the
proposed development is in accordance with Policy S10 (Transport Networks), Policy
S14 (Newton Abbot) and Policy HT1 (Heart of Teignbridge — Movement) of the
Teignbridge Local Plan.

Impact on Landscape and Visual Amenity

The proposals would result in the loss of trees and woodland within the sparsely
settled farmed valley floors of the wider Bovey Basin landscape. No ancient
woodland or veteran trees would be affected (in accordance with Policy EN12:
Woodlands, Trees and Hedgerows). The woodland is, however, valued for forming a
rural setting to Orleigh Cross residential area and adjoining a public open space on
the edge of Newton Abbot. The trees to be removed include 14 trees protected by a
Tree Preservation Order. However, these and other trees within the woodland
affected already have consent for removal following approval of the consented A382
road scheme (planning application reference DCC/3851/2016). Given the
importance of the trees and woodland in this locality, it is appropriate to impose
conditions that allow the protection of the trees not scheduled for removal to be
retained prior to, during and following construction.

The proposals represent a revised road alignment of the consented scheme further
to the north away from Orleigh Cross. The most significant adverse visual impacts
would be experienced by residents of Orleigh Cross, who would see views of moving
traffic and street lighting on the top of the road embankment above the acoustic
fence, filtered by intervening trees, as illustrated by viewpoint 2 and associated
photomontage. Such effects would be worse in winter, although it is noted that the
proposed woodland on the embankments includes evergreen species (privet and
holly), which will increase screening if placed high up the embankment. The revised
road alignment would allow the retention of a wider belt of woodland between the
proposed road and the residential properties, which would provide a more substantial
depth of woodland screening than the consented scheme. As a result, the adverse
visual impacts of the proposed scheme would be reduced from day one, in
comparison with the consented scheme. The proposed realignment would also
retain the existing play area and public open space to the north of Orleigh Cross
intact - whereas the consented scheme would slightly change the topography of part
of this area. The proposed scheme would also introduce a large artificial earthwork
embankment into an area characterised by flat or very gently sloping low-lying
topography, and therefore would not respect the character of LCT3C: sparsely
settled farmed valley floors. However, this was also the case with the consented
scheme, therefore it has already been decided that the benefits of the scheme would
outweigh such harm in the planning balance.

The likely effects of the proposals upon visual amenity and the character, features
and condition of the local landscape have been identified and taken into account in
the resulting sensitive siting and design proposals. These incorporate mitigation
measures to integrate the road and embankment into the landscape setting whilst
respecting local landscape character and minimising significant adverse visual
impacts on nearby sensitive receptors. The proposed use of stone-faced
hedgebanks and hedgerow trees along the western road frontage have been
informed through consultation with Teignbridge District Council’s landscape officer.

Page 8



Agenda Item 4

Overall, it is considered that the impact of the proposals on landscape character and
visual amenity are acceptable and in accordance with Policy EN2A (Landscape
Protection and Enhancement) of the Teignbridge Local Plan.

6.16 The landscape proposals and plant schedules are broadly appropriate for the
location and purposes of landscape integration, and the species selected are
appropriate to the likely ground conditions (noting the soils are slightly acid loamy
and clayey soils with impeded drainage or freely draining slightly acid loamy soils).
However, it is recommended that the imposition of conditions that would allow minor
revisions and additions to the landscape and ecological mitigation proposals to take
further opportunities to enhance biodiversity and amenity, address inconsistencies
and omissions, reduce ongoing maintenance requirements for DCC and ensure the
proposals are able to be sustained into the future, including proposed wetland
habitats and SuDS features.

Impact on Nature Conservation/Habitats

6.17 Policy EN8 (Biodiversity Protection and Enhancement) of the Teignbridge Local Plan
requires the protection, enhancement and restoration of the areas biodiversity. The
proposed development has been designed to avoid or reduce the potential for likely
significant effects, specifically by minimising land-take of key habitats for sensitive
species and maintaining habitat connectivity. Policy EN8 also requires that decisions
must be informed by sufficient/proportionate biodiversity information. In this case it is
considered that the submitted Environmental Statement is based upon proportionate
biodiversity information and assessments

6.18 In respect of habitats, the proposed development will result in the loss of: 1.1ha of
broadleaved woodland; an approximate 10m section of narrow watercourse; 0.38ha
of willow carr/scrub; 0.84ha marshy grassland; and 0.19ha of species-poor semi
improved grassland. In mitigation for this loss of habitat the proposal will deliver a
10% net gain in biodiversity through habitat enhancement and creation / appropriate
biodiversity offsetting measures. This includes within the redline boundary: 1.0ha of
broadleaved woodland habitat; 0.22ha of willow carr habitat, 0.51ha of marshy
grassland and 0.51 ha of species rich grassland. Mitigation/compensation outside of
the redline boundary will include: 9.9ha broadleaved woodland; 3.88ha willow carr;
and 0.49ha of marshy grassland. In accordance with Policy EN9 (Important Habitats
and Features) of the Teignbridge Local Plan, the proposals have taken account of
the importance of affected habitats and designated sites; in particular the
internationally important South Hams Special Area of Conservation (SAC). Linkages
for wildlife movement have been secured and all ecological effects have been
avoided, mitigated or where this is not possible, compensated. The secured 10% net
gain is in accordance with paragraph 170 of the National Planning Policy Framework.

6.19 There are five County Wildlife Sites linked hydrologically to the proposed
development. Whilst there is the potential for pollution impacts both during
construction and operation of the road, it is considered that these have be prevented
with the implementation of pollution control measures which will be submitted under
the Construction Environment Management Plan (CEMP) required by condition.

6.20 Policy EN11 (Legally Protected and Priority Species) of the Teignbridge Local Plan
states that to protect and expand the presence of legally protected and priority
species, development which would be likely to directly or indirectly harm such a
species will not be permitted unless:

(a) sufficient up to date information is available on which to base a decision;

Page 9



Agenda ltem 4

6.21

6.22

6.23

(b) the public benefits of the development outweigh the harm;

(c) these benefits cannot be provided through an alternative, less harmful
location, design or form of development;

(d) appropriate mitigation and compensation is provided to offset any harm to the
species and their habitats; and

(e) for legally protected species favourable conservation status is maintained.

Where appropriate, proposals should consider including opportunities for species
within the built environment, for example bird, bat and invertebrate boxes.

The proposed development has the potential to impact on a number of European
Protected Species including Dormice, Otter, Greater Horseshoe Bats and Great
Crested Newts. In addition to European Protected Species, the proposed
development has the potential to impact on a number of other protected species
including: Reptiles (Grass Snake/ Slow-worm/ Common Lizard); Nesting Birds; and
Badgers.

It is considered that the submitted assessments and information within the
Environmental Statement are sufficient to conclude that appropriate mitigation and
compensation is proposed to offset any harm to these species and their habitats.
The public benefits of the proposed development are outlined extensively (in section
6.7 - 6.12) and it is accepted that these benefits cannot be provided in an alternative
(less harmful) location due to other constraints such as the public open space at
Orleigh Cross and the presence of the functional floodplain. Overall, it is considered
that the outlined public benefits of the proposed development outweigh the limited
potential harm to species and their habitats, and the proposed development is
therefore in accordance with Policy EN11. The proposed mitigation/ compensation
will be secured by planning condition.

The proposed development site lies 2.1km south of the edge of the Sustenance Zone
for the Chudleigh roost; 110m west of the edge of a Strategic Flight Route associated
with the SAC, and within a SAC Landscape Connectivity Zone. In 2017, an
Appropriate Assessment was prepared for the wider A382 Improvement scheme
(Jennings, 2017) which concluded that there would be no Likely Significant Effect on
the SAC as a result of the (then) proposed development, which included a section at
Jetty Marsh with the same orientation but a different alignment. Prior to the
submission of this planning application, a meeting was held between the Devon
County Council Ecologist, the applicant and Natural England on 15 January 2019 to
discuss the need for further bat survey data in relation to these proposals and any
subsequent HRA required. Natural England made the following comments:

“In summary, we agreed no further greater horseshoe bat survey is necessary. The
site of the amended section under consideration is in an area that has limited habitat
connectivity and is within an area that is relatively developed. The focus of
permeability is located in other more suitable locations along the length of the A382
road widening scheme. We advise that the proposals represent low risk to
commuting greater horseshoe bats, and it is likely that the proposals can be
screened out within the context of the SAC.”

Therefore, these proposals are deemed to not have a likely significant effect on the

South Hams SAC Greater Horseshoe Bat population alone or in-combination with
other projects and has been screened out of further assessment.

Page 10



Agenda Item 4

Impact on Flood Risk

6.24 In accordance with Policy EN4 (Flood Risk) of the Teignbridge Local Plan, it is
required to undertake a sequential test so as to avoid, where possible, flood risk to
people and property. The aim of the sequential test is to steer new development to
areas with the lowest risk of flooding. Paragraph 158 of the National Planning Policy
Framework states that development should not be allocated or permitted if there are
reasonably available sites appropriate for the proposed development in areas with a
lower risk of flooding.

6.25 Inthis case it is considered that there are no reasonably available sites appropriate
for the proposed development in areas with a lower risk of flooding. Given that the
link road is required to link the A382 to West Golds Way, there is limited scope to
alter the location of the road. The road cannot be located any further to the
south/west as this would mean it encroaches on public open space at Orleigh Cross.
Locating the road any further to the north/east would cause it to encroach further in to
Flood Zone 3.

6.26 In cases such as this, where it is not possible to locate the development in zones with
a lower risk of flooding, the exception test should be applied. For the exception test
to be passed, it should be demonstrated that:

(a) the development would provide wider sustainability benefits to the community
that outweigh the flood risk; and

(b) the development will be safe for its lifetime taking account of the vulnerability
of its users, without increasing flood risk elsewhere, and, where possible, will
reduce flood risk overall.

6.27 In this instance the scheme is considered to pass the first criteria of the Exceptions
Test as it provides wider sustainability benefits to the community via the provision of
a ‘dry’ route to the Community Hospital and a Cycleway which links the proposed
Local Plan allocated sites to Newton Abbot whilst removing an existing pinch point on
the road network which will aid in the reduction of traffic congestion and therefore
improvement of air quality. To fulfil the second aspect of the Exceptions Test, the
scheme incorporates an area of compensatory flood storage which negates the
impact of the embankment on the flood storage associated with the functional flood
plain and provides a betterment in the form of additional storage volume. It is not
considered that the development will increase flood risk elsewhere.

6.28 It is noted that the applicant has proposed a feasible surface water drainage strategy
which follows the principles set out in the surface water management hierarchy. The
surface water runoff will be attenuated in a detention basin which also incorporates
long term storage requirements in line with best practice. The strategy also
encompasses a swale, trapped gullies and a bioretention area which will all offer
treatment of the surface water runoff. An outline maintenance strategy for all
components of the proposed surface water drainage system has been submitted.
Consequently, it is considered that the proposed development is in accordance with
Policy EN4 (Flood Risk) of the Teignbridge Local Plan.

Impact on Residential Amenity

6.29 The proposed new alignment moves the link road further away from residential
properties at Orleigh Cross. This will result in a reduction of the impact on the
residential amenity of these existing dwellings with regards to privacy, security,

Page 11



Agenda ltem 4

6.30

6.31

6.32

6.33

outlook and natural light in accordance with Policy S1 (Sustainable Development
Criteria) of the Teignbridge Local Plan.

With regards to noise, during the daytime period there is a slight increase in the
number of dwellings that are subject to a substantial adverse impact in comparison to
the originally approved scheme (from 38 to 42). However, this slight increase is
offset by the increase in the number of dwellings subject to a minor decrease in noise
level in comparison to the originally approved scheme (from 21 to 42). Overall, the
proposed development offers an improvement in terms of the noise impacts on
residential amenity in comparison to the A382 consented scheme as there is a
general reduction in the number of dwellings adversely effected by the scheme.
There will be temporary significant adverse effects from noise during the construction
period, however it is considered that these adverse effects can be suitably managed
through the submission of a Construction Environment Management Plan (CEMP)
required by condition. Consequently, it is considered that the impact of noise on
residential amenity resulting for the proposed development is acceptable and in
accordance with Policies S1 (Sustainable Development Criteria), S9 (Sustainable
Transport) and S11 (Pollution) of the Teignbridge Local Plan.

An ‘air quality addendum’ to the air quality chapter of the Environmental Statement
covering the previously approved alignment as part of the consented A382 scheme
has been submitted in support of this application. The proposed development does
not result in any significant traffic emissions changes compared to the approved
A382 improvement scheme and the magnitude of impacts will remain negligible. As
such the overall effect is still considered to be ‘not significant’. It is therefore
considered that the proposed development will not have an unacceptable impact on
air quality and is in accordance with Policies EN6 (Air Quality), HT1 (Heart of
Teignbridge — Movement), S1 (Sustainable Development Criteria) and S11
(Pollution) of the Teignbridge Local Plan.

Climate Change and Sustainability Considerations

Devon County Council has declared a climate emergency and aims to facilitate the
decarbonisation of Devon by 2050 at the latest.

The proposals have incorporated a variety of sustainable design and climate
mitigation measures including:

¢ the re-use of excavated material from the flood compensation area in
construction of the embankment - whilst it may not be possible to re-use all of this
material, any re-use will reduce the need for haulage of the waste material and
the waste disposal capacity required;

e use of locally sourced aggregates subject to local supply and demand; with
several large-scale schemes running in parallel there is the potential that they
would need to be sourced further afield;

o the road level has been set 0.6 m higher than the modelled flood level to account
for climate change;

o the proposed surface water design has considered all rainfall events up to and
including the 1 in 100yr +40% climate change allowance;

o the bituminous layers of the road will be constructed from proprietary products
with an appropriate design life;

¢ the risk of plant failure has been minimised by selecting locally occurring native
species;

e acommitment has been made to secure a 10% net gain in biodiversity offsets.

Page 12



Agenda Item 4

6.34 Whilst it is acknowledged that the weight that should be given to climate change and
sustainability in decision making is increasing, this still needs to be balanced against
other material considerations and the requirements of Section 38 (6) of the Planning
and Compulsory Purchase Act 2004 that determination shall be in accordance with
the Development Plan unless material considerations indicate otherwise.

6.35 In this case it is considered that the need for the proposed development in delivering
developments identified in the adopted local plan is not outweighed by the climate
change impacts. The reasoning for this is that the proposed development is in part
driven by the aims to deliver cycle and pedestrian facilities between new
developments and Newton Abbot, giving residents a viable choice to use sustainable
modes of transport; as well as strengthening and improving the public transport
network by reducing delay on principle County Bus Routes. Given the sustainable
design and climate mitigation measures discussed above that have been
incorporated in to the design, it is considered that the proposed development is in
accordance with Policies S6 (Resilience), S7 (Carbon Emission Targets) and EN3
(Carbon Reduction Plans).

Impact on the Historic Environment and Archaeology

6.36 The proposed development is located within a historic landscape with a large number
of nearby non-designated heritage assets. The National Planning Policy Framework
states that the effect of an application on the significance of a non-designated
heritage asset should be taken into account in determining the application. In
weighing applications that directly or indirectly affect non-designated heritage assets,
a balanced judgement will be required having regard to the scale of any harm or loss
and the significance of the heritage asset.

6.37 The heritage significance of non-designated heritage assets within the application
site varies between low and medium, and it is considered that the benefits of
undertaking the proposed archaeological mitigation measures would result in
negligible beneficial effects. Devon County Council Historic Environment service was
consulted on this application and confirmed that it had no objections subject to a
planning condition requiring the submission of a programme of archaeological
mitigation.

6.38 Whilst there are Listed Buildings in the vicinity, the closest of these is over 500
metres away and it is considered that the proposed development will have no impact
upon these buildings/structures or their setting. Overall, it is therefore considered
that the proposed development is in accordance with Policy EN5 (Heritage Assets) of
the Teignbridge Local Plan.

Other Matters

6.39 The proposed development bisects an area of land included in the NA2 (Whitehill)
allocation of the Teignbridge Local Plan, allocated for employment land. The
Whitehill, Newton Abbot (NA2) Development Framework Plan SPD (April 2016)
states that, since the adoption of the Local Plan, draft proposals for improving the
A382 route have been produced by Devon County Council. The currently approved
alignment of the improvements to the A382 includes a major new roundabout
connecting the A382 to Jetty Marsh Road that will be constructed within the area
allocated for employment development. If implemented, this would preclude the
development of this land for employment uses. Given the uncertainty over the
employment land allocation, it is proposed that development at NA2 Whitehill should,

Page 13



Agenda ltem 4

6.40

6.41

7.1

7.2

7.3

through s106 planning obligations fund the delivery of equivalent employment land
provision (which is not infrastructure), elsewhere at NA2 or within a reasonable
commuting distance from this allocation. The proposed development would not
result in any additional impact on the employment land in the NA2 allocation.

The proposed development is located within the Bovey Basin Mineral Safeguarding
Area identified for Industrial Minerals (Ball Clay) but does not form part of a long-term
working area. As the affected area is located within functional flood plain any quarry
workings would require extensive compensatory flood storage earthworks to prevent
an increase in flood risk to the surrounding urban area. It is unlikely that this would
become financially viable when the resource has already been partially worked by
audit in the past and the options for compensatory earthworks are limited due to the
topography of the site and close proximity to existing housing and infrastructure. For
this reason, the submitted Environmental Statement has assessed the magnitude of
impact of impact upon the minerals resource as ‘negligible’. Additionally, it should be
noted that minerals industry stakeholders were consulted on this application and
have not raised any objections. DCC Minerals Policy stated in their consultation
response that ‘given the prohibition on further working beneath the application site, it
can be concluded that the underlying mineral resource is not economic, and the
proposed development is therefore consistent with Policy M2’

Policy EN7 (Contaminated Land) of the Teignbridge Local Plan states that, where a
contaminated land assessment identifies an adverse environmental or health impact,
appropriate and sufficient remedial measures for its intended use will be required, to
ensure the site is not harmful to human health, the environment or property in the
short or long term. In this case, the submitted contaminated land assessment has
found that impacts relating to soil contamination are negligible as ground
investigations to date have not identified contamination within soils to be re-used in
the development. Should any soils be encountered which are unacceptable for
re-use, these are to be removed off-Site in accordance with the relevant waste
legislation.

Reasons for Recommendation/Alternative Options Considered

The Committee has the option of approving, deferring or refusing this planning
application.

It is considered that the proposed development would provide a significant
improvement on the previously approved alignment of the Jetty Marsh link road by
avoiding public open space at Orleigh Cross. Additionally, the proposal will lead to
substantial public benefit in terms of infrastructure provision that would help facilitate
the delivery of planned development in the Teignbridge Local Plan; greatly improve
resilience of the local road network; and provide improved pedestrian/cycle facilities.
It is considered that these benefits outweigh the less than substantial environmental
impacts that have been identified.

In this case it is recommended that the proposed development be approved in
accordance with the recommendations of the report.

Mike Deaton
Chief Planner

Electoral Divisions: Newton Abbot North and Bovey Rural

Page 14



Agenda Item 4

Local Government Act 1972: List of Background Papers

Contact for enquiries: Stephen Boundy

Room No: AB2, Lucombe House, County Hall

Tel No: 01392 383000

Background Paper Date File Ref.
Casework File Current DCC/4131/2019
sb220819dma

sc/cr/provision of a new link road connecting the A382 to West Golds Way

02 090919

Page 15



Agenda Item 4

Location Plan
To PTE/19/32

Page 16



/T obed

Site Plan 1 of 2
To PTE/19/32

[P PROPOSED WORKS | /it
iV | COMPOUNDAREA | /%"

" STHE FaED v sk oW 13 e ME NN ! R N s s ]
* * o B . AT 3 Y T ST SRR TERM BV F TORRL 31 N S FLOT WA

- . \ . N - T WL, EERIM s BPRLSHE
B FELS dccbss Lods UF LR, 2, X ™, Wb« e Cray

. -
- T TP ™ Sinks

7 wa)| epusby



gT obed

Site Plan 2 of 2
To PTE/19/32

7 wa)| epusby



Agenda Item 4

Appendix |
To PTE/19/32

Planning Conditions
STANDARD COMMENCEMENT

1. The development shall commence within ten years of the date of this permission.
REASON: In accordance with Section 91 of the Town and Country Planning Act 1990.
STRICT ACCORDANCE WITH PLANS/DOCUMENTS

2. The development shall be carried out in strict accordance with the details shown on the
approved drawings and documents numbered/titled; 0476.LP1 (Location Plan); 0476.200
(Scheme Layout Key Plan); 0476.201 Revision C (Scheme Layout Sheet 1); 0476.202
Revision B (Scheme Layout Sheet 2); 0476.203 Revision B (Vertical Profile Sheet 1);
0476.204 (Vertical Profile Sheet 2); 0476.205 (Contours and Levels Sheet 1); 0476.206
(Contours and Levels Sheet 2); 0476.207 Revision A (Highway Drainage Sheet 1);
0476.208 Revision A (Flood Compensatory Area Proposed Earthworks); 0476.209
(Highway Drainage Detention Basin); 0476.210 (Box Culvert 1 Combined Bat Flyway &
Culverted Watercourse); 0476.211 (Typical Section CH.1267 Looking South East);
416.03019.00063.29.008 Revision 3 (Landscape & Ecological Mitigation Plan); Off Site
Compensation — Letter of Intent (dated 30 August 2019); Outdoor Lighting Report (Revision
2); and the details (including the relevant technical appendices and supporting documents
where applicable) as set out in the ‘Design, Mitigation and Enhancement Measures,
including Monitoring requirements’ section of Chapters 6 (Cultural Heritage); 7
(Landscape); 8 (Ecology — Revision 02); 9 (Noise and Vibration); 10 (Water Environment);
11 (Geodiversity); 12 (Materials and Waste); and 13 (Climate Change Adaptation) of the
Environmental Statement unless varied by the conditions below.

REASON: To ensure that the development is carried out in accordance with the approved
details.

CONDITIONS (PRE-COMMENCEMENT)

3. No part of the development hereby permitted shall be commenced until the detailed design
of the proposed permanent surface water drainage management system has been
submitted to, and approved in writing by, the County Planning Authority, in consultation with
Devon County Council as the Lead Local Flood Authority. The design of this permanent
surface water drainage management system will be in accordance with the principles of
sustainable drainage systems, and those set out in the Flood Risk Assessment March 2019
Jetty Marsh Il, HCE 0476 Rev A. No part of the development shall be occupied until the
surface water management scheme serving that part of the development has been
provided in accordance with the approved details and the drainage infrastructure shall be
retained and maintained for the lifetime of the development.

Reason: To ensure that surface water runoff from the development is managed in
accordance with the principles of sustainable drainage systems and with Policy EN4 (Flood
Risk) of the Teignbridge Local Plan 2013-2033.

4, No part of the development hereby permitted shall be commenced until the detailed design
of the proposed surface water drainage management system which will serve the
development site for the full period of its construction has been submitted to, and approved
in writing by, the County Planning Authority, in consultation with Devon County Council as
the Lead Local Flood Authority. This temporary surface water drainage management

Page 19



Agenda ltem 4

system must satisfactorily address both the rates and volumes, and quality, of the surface
water runoff from the construction site.

Reason: To ensure that surface water runoff from the construction site is appropriately
managed so as to not increase the flood risk, or pose water quality issues, to the
surrounding area in accordance with Policy EN4 (Flood Risk) of the Teignbridge Local Plan
2013-2033.

5. No part of the development hereby permitted shall be commenced until details of the
exceedance pathways and overland flow routes across the site in the event of rainfall in
excess of the design standard of the proposed surface water drainage management system
have been submitted to, and approved in writing by, the County Planning Authority, in
consultation with Devon County Council as the Lead Local Flood Authority.

Reason: To ensure that the surface water runoff generated from rainfall events in excess of
the design standard of the proposed surface water drainage management system is safely
managed in accordance with Policy EN4 (Flood Risk) of the Teignbridge Local Plan 2013-
2033.

6. No part of the development hereby permitted shall be commenced until the developer has
secured the implementation of a programme of archaeological work in accordance with a
written scheme of investigation (WSI) which has been submitted to and approved in writing
by the County Planning Authority. The development shall be carried out at all times in
accordance with the approved scheme.

Reason: To ensure, in accordance with the National Planning Policy Framework, that an
appropriate record is made of archaeological evidence that may be affected by the
development.

7. No part of the development hereby permitted shall be commenced until a detailed
Construction Environment Management Plan has been submitted to and approved in
writing by the County Planning Authority. This Plan shall include details of all permits,
contingency plans and mitigation measures that shall be put in place to control the risk of
pollution to air, the noise environment, soil and controlled waters, protect biodiversity and
trees not scheduled for removal and avoid, minimise and manage the productions of wastes
with particular attention being paid to the constraints and risks of the site. Thereafter the
development shall be carried out in accordance with the approved details and any
subsequent amendments shall be agreed in writing with the County Planning Authority.

Reason : To ensure that adequate measures are put in place to avoid or manage the risk of
pollution or waste production during the course of the development works.

8. No part of the development hereby permitted shall be commenced until the approved
Landscape & Ecology Management Plan (LEMP) for the wider A382 improvement scheme
has been updated to include this Jetty Marsh alignment and submitted to and approved in
writing by the County Planning Authority. The LEMP should be produced in accordance
with the submitted proposals and also take on board any changes in best practice relating
to ecological mitigation and monitoring and any Natural England licence requirements.

An ecological clerk of works must oversee implementation of the LEMP.
Reason: To ensure the quality of Teignbridge’s natural environment is conserved and

enhanced in accordance with Policy EN8 (Biodiversity Protection and Enhancement) of the
Teignbridge Local Plan 2013 - 2033.

Page 20



10.

11.

12.

Agenda Item 4

No part of the development hereby permitted shall be commenced until a scheme to ensure
that the habitat loss (including wet woodland, marshy grassland and swamp) is offset by the
creation of new habitat in line with Natural England’s biodiversity metric and 10%
Biodiversity Net Gain, as detailed in Environmental Statement Volume 2 Chapter 8 Ecology
has been submitted to and approved in writing by the County Planning Authority.

The scheme shall be fully implemented and subsequently maintained in accordance with
the scheme’s timing/phasing arrangements, or within any other period as may subsequently
be agreed, in writing, by the County planning authority.

Reasons: To ensure that there is no net loss of habitat as a result of the development in
accordance with Policy EN8 (Biodiversity Protection and Enhancement) of the Teignbridge
Local Plan 2013 - 2033.

Prior to the commencement of vegetation clearance, details of and a timetable for the
implementation of the pre-construction surveys shall be submitted to and approved in
writing by the County Planning Authority.

The pre-construction surveys shall be implemented in accordance with the approved details
and timetable.

Reason: To ensure the quality of Teignbridge’s natural environment is conserved and
enhanced in accordance with Policy EN8 (Biodiversity Protection and Enhancement) of the
Teignbridge Local Plan 2013 - 2033.

No part of the development hereby permitted shall be commenced until such time as the
detailed design of the watercourse box culvert has been submitted to, and approved in
writing by, the County Planning Authority. The design shall incorporate an animal ledge
which is suitable for otters.

The culvert shall be fully implemented and subsequently maintained in accordance with the
submitted details.

Reasons: To ensure that the species are able to maintain access through the culvert in
accordance with Policy EN11 (Legally Protected and Priority Species) of the Teignbridge
Local Plan 2013 - 2033.

Prior to the commencement of vegetation clearance, a detailed method statement following
the reptile mitigation proposed in Chapter 8 of the Environmental Statement shall be
submitted to and approved in writing by the County Planning Authority.

The reptile mitigation shall then be implemented in accordance with the approved detailed
method statement.

Reason: To ensure that the proposed development will not have an unacceptable impact

on protected species in accordance with Policy EN11 (Legally Protected and Priority
Species) of the Teignbridge Local Plan 2013 - 2033.

Page 21






Agenda Iltem 5

PTE/19/33

Development Management Committee
18 September 2019

County Council Development

Teignbridge: Construction of a single storey extension to the existing school building
and the alteration of the existing grass playing field to a 3G pitch, including
associated landscaping and car parking, Chudleigh Church of England Community
Primary School, Lawn Drive, Chudleigh

Applicant: Devon County Council

Application No: 19/00944/DCC

Date application received by Devon County Council: 1 May 2019

Report of the Chief Planner

Please note that the following recommendations are subject to consideration and
determination by the Committee before taking effect.

Recommendation: It is recommended that:

(a) Planning permission is granted subject to the conditions set out in Appendix |
of this report (with any subsequent minor changes to the conditions being
agreed in consultation with the Chair and Local Member); and

(b) Prior to the issue of planning permission, confirmation of the resolution to
grant planning permission is reported to the National Planning Casework Unit
to afford the Secretary of State for Housing, Communities and Local
Government the opportunity to call-in the application for his own determination
as required by the Town and Country Planning (Consultation) (England)
Direction 2009.

1. Summary

1.1.  This report relates to an application for an extension to Chudleigh Primary School,
which also includes the removal of two planters in the car park to provide an
additional six car parking spaces; the replacement of the existing grass playing field
with an artificial 3G pitch; and landscaping proposals to create an informal teaching
area.

1.2.  The main considerations in the determination of this application are planning policy
considerations; the loss of open space; nature conservation; proximity to residential
properties; high quality design; and climate change.

1.3.  The planning application, representations received and consultation responses are
available to view on the Council website under reference DCC/4121/2019 or by
clicking on the following link:
https://planning.devon.gov.uk/PlanDisp.aspx?AppNo=DCC/4121/2019.

1.4. As the application has generated an objection by Sport England to loss of the school
playing field, a resolution of the Council to grant permission must be referred to the
Government’s Planning Casework Unit under the provisions of the Town and Country
Planning (Consultation) (England) Direction 2009. The Secretary of State will then
consider whether to call in the application for his own determination.

Page 23


https://planning.devon.gov.uk/PlanDisp.aspx?AppNo=DCC/4121/2019

Agenda Item 5

21.

2.2.

2.3.

24.

2.5.

3.1

The Proposal/Background

Chudleigh Primary School is located within the centre of Chudleigh, with the main
vehicular and pedestrian access located on Lawn Drive. Residential properties
surround the site to the east, south and west, with community facilities, including a
swimming pool, multi-use games areas and grass playing field to the north. The
primary school building is single storey occupying the northern area of the school
site, with hard surfaced and grassed play areas to the east. The playing field is
located in the south of the school site.

This application consists of a single storey extension to the north of the main school
building which would create 268m? of floorspace, including a classroom, an art
studio, a library area, a Special Educational Needs resource, as well as an office,
WCs and circulation space. The extension would result in the loss of hard-surfaced
play area and the removal of a section of hedgerow. A mono-pitch roof is proposed
for the extension, with a flat roof to connect the rooms to the existing building. The
maximum height of the pitch is approximately 4.97m, with the existing school building
pitch reaching a height of approximately 5.66m. The extension is proposed to be
clad with slate grey coloured metal, with coloured rendered panels, aluminium
windows and doors (slate grey), with a grey concrete paving/grey brickwork plinth.

The proposal looks to replace the existing grass playing field with an artificial 3G turf
pitch, which would be 55m in length and 37m in width (59m x 41m with runoff).
There is no fencing or lighting proposed to be associated with this pitch.

In addition to the above, the proposal also includes external landscaping. Two
planters within the car park would be removed to accommodate car parking for up to
six staff members. A path/seating area would be created around the extension.
Construction access for the extension is proposed to be via the entrance off Parkway
Road. This would require the removal of vegetation to the east of the school building
and the area reinstated as a food growing/environmental area.

Although not part of this application, internal alterations of the main school building
will take place alongside the proposed works, which will create a further classroom.
The proposal, together with the internal alterations, would result in the increase in
pupil numbers from 420 to 525.

Consultation Responses

Teignbridge District Council: No objections and provide the following observations:

e itis considered the proposed extension would not adversely affect the setting of
the Conservation Area;

¢ no objection to the alteration to the grass playing field;
given the proximity to neighbouring properties, a condition is recommended to
limit the hours of use of the playing field to prevent any adverse impacts;

e arequirement for lighting may arise should community access be granted, a
condition limiting the use of lighting could offer a precautionary measure for
biodiversity reasons;

¢ a biodiversity net gain should be achieved, which could be secured through a
Landscape and Ecological Management Plan; and

¢ should the 3G pitch be used out of hours, the impact of an increase in traffic and
parking in the local area should be considered.

Page 24



3.2.

3.3.

3.4.

Agenda Iltem 5

Chudleigh Town Council: No objection - recognise the need for the school to
enhance its classroom and outdoor facilities.

Sport England: Objection — the proposal would see the loss of an existing playing

pitch for 7v7 match play to a synthetic turf pitch / artificial grass pitch (AGP) with no
sports lighting. The proposal is not supported by the Football Foundation on behalf
of the FA or the RFU.

The proposal needs to be considered against exception E5 of Sport England’s
Playing Field Policy, which states:

E5 - The proposed development is for an indoor or outdoor facility for sport, the
provision of which would be of sufficient benefit to the development of sport as
to outweigh the detriment caused by the loss, or prejudice to the use, of the
area of playing field.

The proposal for a synthetic turf pitch with no lights and not suitable for affiliated
community football has limited, if any, potential to meet E5S. A new AGP would need
to be ffit for purpose’ and meet the requirements for football match play, generate an
income for operation including ‘sinking fund’ and be open to community use to meet
the identified strategic need, as identified in the adopted Teignbridge Council Playing
Pitch Strategy (PPS). This strategy highlights that the Chudleigh Sports Centre is a
football site that is currently ‘overplayed’ and concludes that there is an identified
need to retain existing playing fields (protect).

Overall, the application is not considered to accord with any of the exceptions to
Sport England's Playing Fields Policy or with Paragraph 97 of the NPPF.

Sport England strongly recommend the following condition regarding community use
being attached to a decision notice should the local planning authority be minded to
approve this application:

Use of the development shall not commence until a community use agreement
prepared in consultation with Sport England has been submitted to and
approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority, and a copy of the
completed approved agreement has been provided to the Local Planning
Authority. The agreement shall apply to [describe facilities forming part of the
development] and include details of pricing policy, hours of use, access by non-
[educational establishment] users, users [/non-members], management
responsibilities and a mechanism for review, and anything else which the Local
Planning Authority in consultation with Sport England considers necessary in
order to secure the effective community use of the facilities. The development
shall not be used at any time other than in strict compliance with the approved
agreement.

Reason: To secure well managed safe community access to the sports
facility/facilities, to ensure sufficient benefit to the development of sport and to
accord with Development Plan Policy **.

Devon and Cornwall Police Designing Out Crime: The current perimeter at the site is
a concern and has shown to contribute to crime and anti-social behaviour (ASB) at
the location. The proposed application, particularly the 3G sports pitch, is highly
likely to attract further unauthorised access and misuse and therefore if planning
permission is granted it is requested that the planning officer considers applying the
following conditions:

Page 25



Agenda Item 5

The perimeter of the site must be adequately secured by way of a secure and
robust boundary treatment.

Reason — To prevent casual intrusion and unauthorised access on to the site
which has shown to contribute to crime and ASB.

A suitable boundary treatment for the 3G sports pitch is installed.
Reason — To prevent unauthorised access, misuse and damage to the facility.

Recommendations have also been made for the specifications of doors and
windows, alarms, defensive planting and surveillance.

3.5.  South West Water: No objection.

3.6. Natural England: No comments.

3.7. Wales and West Utilities: Provided general conditions to be observed during
construction.

3.8. DCC Ecology (and Landscape): Recommend the following conditions:

o wildlife enhancement measures to be carried out as set out in the submitted
Ecology Report, with an updated LEMP provided;

¢ lighting on the school extension to be implemented to avoid any light spill onto
habitat;

¢ no external lighting on the artificial pitch;

e no vegetation clearance during bird nesting season,;

o Reptile Mitigation Plan to be produced prior to any works in the environmental
garden.

The habitat to be removed as part of these proposals is deemed unsuitable for use
by foraging and/or commuting Greater Horseshoe Bats. Therefore, these proposals
are deemed to not have a likely significant effect on the South Hams SAC GHB
population alone or in-combination with other projects.

3.9. DCC Highways: No objection — the Transport Assessment concludes this proposal
would not have a severe impact on the highway network, which the Highway
Authority agree with.

3.10. DCC Flood Risk: No in-principle objections, subject to the imposition of

pre-commencement conditions requiring:

¢ the detailed drainage design of the proposed permanent surface water
management system;

¢ details of the adoption and maintenance arrangements for the surface water
drainage management system; and

¢ the detailed design of the proposed surface water drainage management system
which will serve the development site for the full period of its construction.

3.11. DCC Public Health: Where improving the drainage is unlikely to result in a significant
improvement in the usability of the grass pitch, a 3G alternative is supported.
Currently 20% of the Chudleigh and Teign Valley population aged 16+ is physically
inactive. Therefore, this provision may help contribute to improving the health and

Page 26



3.12.

41.

5.1.

5.2.

Agenda Iltem 5

wellbeing of the wider community and will contribute towards the primary school age
children developing a habit of engaging in physical activity from an early age.

We note some concerns have been raised about the 3G pitch. Evidence available
from Sport England shows that there has been research into the areas of the health
concerns previously raised. This shows that there is guidance in place and
regulations that help to protect the environment, influence the quality of the 3G
pitches and prevent harms to health.

Local Member: The application will improve space and more importantly allow
greater utilisation of the playing field.

Advertisement/Representations

The application was advertised in accordance with the statutory publicity
arrangements by means of a site notice, notice in the press and notification of
neighbours by letter. As a result of these procedures, eleven representations have
been received, two of which support the application; however, all raise concerns with
the proposals which mainly relate to the 3G pitch:

¢ lack of fencing and security around the sports pitch — the proposals will attract
anti-social behaviour which is already occurring in the local area and causes
disturbance to neighbouring properties;

e no indication on timings of when the sports pitch can be used by the community;

e grass playing field should not be replaced with an environmentally unfriendly and
hazardous alternative;

e existing drainage of the playing field should be improved;

e there is a memorial tree within the carpark planter, could this be relocated;
guestions over whether the additional classrooms are necessary as there is a
falling birth rate;

o comment on whether the best design solution been proposed for the extension.

Planning Policy Considerations

In considering this application the County Council, as County Planning Authority, is
required to have regard to the provisions of the Development Plan insofar as they are
material to the application, and to any other material considerations. Section 38 (6)
of the Planning and Compulsory Purchase Act 2004 requires that where regard is to
be had to the Development Plan, the determination shall be in accordance with the
Development Plan unless material considerations indicate otherwise. In this case,
the Development Plan policies are summarised below and the most relevant are
referred to in more detail in Section 6.

Teignbridge Local Plan 2013 — 2033 (adopted May 2014)

Polices S1A (Presumption in favour of Sustainable Development); S1 (Sustainable
Development Criteria); S2 (Quality Development); S6 (Resilience); S9 (Sustainable
Transport); S20 (Chudleigh); S21 (Villages); S21A (Settlement Limits); WE13
(Protection of Recreational Land and Buildings); EN2A (Landscape Protection and
Enhancement); EN4 (Flood Risk); EN5 (Heritage Assets); EN8 (Biodiversity
Protection and Enhancement); EN9 (Important Habitats and Features); EN10
(European Wildlife Sites); EN11 (Legally Protected and Priority Species); and EN12
(Woodlands, Trees and Hedgerows).

Other material considerations include:

Page 27



Agenda Item 5

6.1.

6.2.

6.3.

6.4.

6.5.

6.6.

National Planning Policy Framework
Planning Practice Guidance

Comments/Issues

It is considered that the main material planning considerations in the determination of
the proposed development are planning policy considerations; the loss of open
space; nature conservation; proximity to residential properties; high quality design;
and climate change.

Planning policy considerations

The proposal is within the existing settlement, contained in the established school
site and, therefore, the principle of the extension and works are considered
acceptable. Policy S20 (Chudleigh) looks for the enhancement of primary school
provision, with paragraph 94 of the NPPF stating that local planning authorities
should give great weight to the need to expand and alter schools.

One response has questioned the need for the additional pupil places, quoting a
falling birth rate. The applicant has clarified that there is a small increase in the
numbers of children in the Chudleigh area predicted over the next four years;
however, the main need for this proposal is from the development planned and
approved within the local area. The Teignbridge Local Plan allocates up to 435
homes within Chudleigh over the plan period to 2033. Should capacity not be found
at this school, it could result in pupils living within the town and local area being
transported to primary schools outside of Chudleigh. This need of the proposal is
considered to be justified.

Loss of open space (including playing field)

The proposal would see a loss of approximately 290m? of hard play space in order to
accommodate the extension and the replacement of the existing playing field,
approximately 2,600m? in area, with an artificial 3G turf pitch. A short-pile rubber
crumb 3G pitch has been selected as a suitable surface based on the requirements
of the school.

Both local and national policy do not support the loss of open space. Policy WE13
(Protection of Recreational Land and Buildings) of the Teignbridge Local Plan
2013-2033 states that the loss of open space and sports land, including playing
fields, to an alternative use will not be permitted unless:

(a) the loss resulting from the proposed development would be replaced by
equivalent or better provision in terms of quantity and quality in a suitable
location; or

(b) the development is for alternative sports provision, the needs for which clearly
outweigh the loss.

Paragraph 97 of the NPPF also states that playing fields should not be built on

unless:

(a) an assessment has been undertaken which has clearly shown the open
space, buildings or land to be surplus to requirements; or

(b) the loss resulting from the proposed development would be replaced by
equivalent or better provision in terms of quantity and quality in a suitable
location; or

(c) the development is for alternative sports and recreational provision, the
benefits of which clearly outweigh the loss of the current or former use.

Page 28



6.7.

6.8.

6.9.

6.10.

6.11.

6.12.

Agenda Iltem 5

The change to the playing field is clearly development for an alternative sport
provision. The applicant has stated that the artificial turf will provide benefits to the
school in that an all-weather pitch will allow a higher level of use year-round as the
current pitch becomes saturated and unusable during heavy periods of rainfall.
Pupils are currently restricted to the existing hard surfaced play areas during these
times and the proposed extension would see the loss on one of these areas. The
introduction of the artificial pitch would provide a larger area for formal and informal
play to deliver the curriculum and potentially encourage more physical activity of
pupils, improving their health and well-being.

Despite this, Sport England oppose the granting of planning permission for any
development that would prejudice the use of a playing field, unless the development
meets one or more of five exception tests. Sport England considers Exception 5 to
be the most relevant to this proposal, as it looks to provide another sport facility:

E5 - The proposed development is for an indoor or outdoor facility for sport, the
provision of which would be of sufficient benefit to the development of sport as
to outweigh the detriment caused by the loss, or prejudice to the use, of the
area of playing field.

Sport England consider that the proposal does not meet this exception, or paragraph
97 of the NPPF, and object to the application on the basis that no lighting is
proposed; that the pitch is not suitable for affiliated community football (mainly
relating to its design); the pitch would not generate an income for a ‘sinking fund’ for
maintenance; it would not be open to community use to meet the identified strategic
need as set out in the Teignbridge Playing Pitch Strategy. Should the application be
approved, Sport England strongly recommend a condition securing a community use
agreement to be prepared and approved.

Responses have suggested improving the drainage of the playing field in order to
retain the grass playing field. The applicant has not done this and contends that
improving the drainage would not provide the benefits of an all-weather pitch or offset
the loss of the hard play area. The benefits of an all-weather pitch are accepted, in
that the facility will provide year-round use for informal recreation and formal
curriculum use, whilst also allowing the school to expand to provide sufficient pupil
places. It is understood the applicant will have to apply to the Department of
Education to build on the hard play surface and have to demonstrate sufficient
alternative hard play space is available. It is likely the proposal would not meet the
criteria without the artificial pitch.

The applicant has stated the proposal will increase the opportunity for community
use. However, Sport England consider that the proposal is not suitable for community
use by affiliated football/rugby groups. It is considered reasonable for the pitch to be
designed to reflect the school’s requirement, which is intended to be the primary
purpose of the pitch. It is understood that in the past, the pitch has been used on an
ad-hoc basis for community use, with no regular use by any local groups. Although
Sport England recommends a condition for a formal community use agreement to be
submitted, it is not considered necessary to formalise this, which is at the discretion
of the school.

Against Sport England’s recommendation, the application does not include proposals
for lighting and this will also limit the amount of community use. This is due to the
potential impacts upon neighbouring residents and Greater Horseshoe Bats (see the
‘Nature Conservation’ section below), and is considered reasonable. In order to

Page 29



Agenda Item 5

6.13.

6.14.

6.15.

6.16.

6.17.

6.18.

further limit any potential disturbance to neighbouring properties should the intensity
of the pitch be increased, it is considered necessary to attach a condition limiting the
use of the all-weather pitch between the hours of 09:00 — 19:00. The maintenance
and renewal of the pitch will be the responsibility of the school, and a maintenance
schedule has been provided with the application which includes decompaction,
cleaning and monitoring infill levels.

Whilst the benefit of a facility designed to meet the requirements of the wider
community, as desired by Sport England, is appreciated, this proposal is focussing
on the needs of the school and it is considered the proposal will be of benefit to the
school, allowing it to expand and improve the outside play facilities. In this context, it
is considered that the development is for alternative sports and recreational
provision, the benefits of which outweigh the loss of the current or former use, in
accordance with both local and national policy.

Nature Conservation

The Ecology Report submitted with the application considers the site to be of low
ecological value and includes the removal of approximately 180m? of species-poor
grassland and hedge, a plum tree, a small group of shrubs and ornamental planting
in planters. However, this vegetation and areas of the site to be used for
construction access could be suitable for reptiles and nesting birds; therefore,
conditions ensuring the removal of vegetation outside of bird nesting season and the
production of a reptile mitigation plan are considered reasonable and necessary to
ensure there will be no ecological impacts. The application also includes
replacement planting, six trees and a small area of shrub, which is also
recommended to be secured by condition. Given the proximity of the site to the
South Hams SAC, two conditions are recommended to control lighting, one
restricting any lighting on the playing field, and one to agree final details for any
lighting attached to the extension.

The Ecological Report submitted includes enhancement measures, including
wildflower planting, bird nesting boxes and insect houses, however, this is not
detailed within the application. It is recommended that a condition is attached to the
planning permission to ensure a biodiversity net-gain.

Overall, the proposal is considered to be in accordance with Policy EN8 (Biodiversity
Protection and Enhancement) of the Teignbridge Local Plan 2013 - 2033.

Proximity to Residential Properties

The school site is surrounded by residential properties and, therefore, there is a
possibility of disturbance during construction, particularly as access is also proposed
from Parkway Road. A Construction Traffic Management Plan has been provided
with the application which looks to limit construction hours to 08:00 to 17:30 hours
Monday - Friday, and this is considered reasonable.

Upon completion, it is unlikely the development will impact upon neighbouring
properties, particularly with the replacement planting to limit potential overlooking and
the imposition of a condition controlling hours of use of the playing field, no lighting
and details of fencing to include measures to minimise reverberation from balls etc. in
accordance with Policy S1 (Sustainable Development Criteria) of the Teignbridge
Local Plan 2013-2033.

Page 30



Agenda Iltem 5

Design

6.19. The existing school is a large brown/grey brick single storey building, with a series of
slate pitched roofs. The cladding and mono-pitch roof of the extension are proposed
to be metal of a slate grey colour, with rendered panels for which the colours are yet
to be agreed. Although the materials would differ from the existing building, it is
considered that the extension is of an appropriate scale and relates well to the
existing built form. One comment has been raised questioning if the use of single
storey is the best design solution and whether a two-storey extension has been
considered. Given the proximity of neighbouring residents and potential impact on
nearby heritage designations, it is not considered a two-storey extension would be
appropriate. Itis considered the current design is in accordance with Policy S2
(Quality Development) of the Teignbridge Local Plan 2013-2033.

6.20. Concerns of anti-social behaviour have been raised by both the Designing Out Crime
Team of Devon and Cornwall Police and neighbouring residents. The police have
highlighted existing issues at the school site and are concerned that the addition of
the all-weather pitch will encourage further incidents of unauthorised access. Whilst
they recommend the entire boundary of the school site to be secured, this does not
form part of this application. It is considered reasonable for a condition to be added
to any permission granted for a fence to be installed around the new all-weather pitch
given the existing known issues at the site, with details to be submitted to the County
Planning Authority. It is considered with this condition the proposal will be in
accordance with paragraphs 91 and 127 of the NPPF which look for the creation of
safe places where crime does not undermine quality of life of community cohesion.

Other Environmental Considerations (Including Climate Change)

6.21. In addition to the ecological mitigation that will be secured, the extension has been
designed to with the aim of reducing energy consumption and increasing efficiency,
through solar gain; high insultation; thermal mass; and ensuring airtightness. The
applicant will also look to reduce waste during construction, which is proposed to be
secured by condition. The applicant has also ensured the extension would not
overshadow the neighbouring solar panels. A School Travel Plan has been provided
to encourage sustainable travel by pupils to increase the already high numbers
(74%) who walk to school.

6.22. Concerns have also been raised regarding the use of plastic to replace a grass
playing field. Policy S6 (Resilience) of the Teignbridge Local Plan 2013-2033 states
that the use of soil should be minimised. The use of plastic for this proposal would
be unavoidable if permitted and would result in the loss of a grassed area. It is
understood that, if well maintained, an artificial pitch can last 10-15 years prior to the
requirement of resurfacing and that there are options, although limited, that currently
exist to recycle the surfacing.

6.23. The applicant has explored various options to manage the surface water, disposal via
infiltration and above ground features has been found unviable due to ground
condition and safety. A storage system is therefore proposed which controls the
amount of water discharged into the existing surface water drainage system. This
storage capacity proposed allows for a 100 year return period event, plus a 40%
allowance climate change. This is considered acceptable, however, the detailed
drainage design, both during construction and operation, will be required by
condition.

Page 31



Agenda Item 5

Other

6.24. Concerns have been raised regarding the health implications of artificial turf pitches
and the use of rubber crumb. Research into these areas has been carried out and
Sport England, in collaboration with other stakeholders, stated in July 2018 that “the
European Chemicals Agency has recently published its own findings, following an
extensive EU-wide study, and has found no reason to advise people against playing
sport on 3G pitches with rubber crumb”.

7. Reasons for Recommendation/Alternative Options Considered

7.1.  The Committee has the option of approving, deferring or refusing this planning
application (subject to the requirement in explained in 1.4 for any resolution for
approval to be referred to the Secretary of State).

7.2.  Whilst it is acknowledged that the loss of the grass playing field is regrettable, not
overly sustainable and does not provide a wider community benefit as set out by
Sport England, it is considered there is a demonstrable need to accommodate
additional pupils from the development planned within the town and the introduction
of the artificial turf pitch would allow this and benefit the school. It is noted that great
weight should be attributed to the need of schools to expand as per paragraph 94 of
the NPPF and, on fine balance, taking into account the objection from Sport England,
it is considered the need and benefits of the proposal outweighs the loss of the grass
playing field and planning permission should be granted in accordance with the
recommendation of this report.

Mike Deaton
Chief Planner

Electoral Division: Chudleigh & Teign Valley

Local Government Act 1972: List of Background Papers

Contact for enquiries: Emily Harper

Room No: AB2, Lucombe House, County Hall

Tel No: 01392 383000

Background Paper Date File Ref.
Casework File Current DCC/4121/2019
eh210819dma

sc/cr/construction of single storey extension existing school building Chudleigh

02 090919

Page 32



Agenda Iltem 5

Location Plan

Application site
Ltiad % ] )

A 2 #

] e, uss_.,;-‘if\*?ef,_- >
= Y ,L..—-**‘xk S

019. m;:a/nc/; 41, 1fm1£l?_§§__ 7\

Development Managemant Commitiee

Head of Planning, County Council Development:

Transportation  Consiruction of a single storey extension to the existing school zcale
Devon and Environment  building and the alteration of the existing grass playing field to a 1:10,000
County Councl 3G pitch, including associated landscaping and car parking at

Chudieigh Church of England Community Primary School, Lawn  Application No:
Drive, Chudleigh, TQ13 OLS 19/00944/DCC

Page 33



v abed

Site Plan

[ [——
—
[ [

(88 Jammim e

s::n—_h-mhw

-hw_imhn}-t-.u
-

[ T S
Focd growing rafsed bace

T

i L T e
T —————————
"=
v e | e wmn | ceenm w | o wim
e
.
T T T s ST
o

PLANNING APPROVAL

l:lwnmmwuhm
e i st papt . L

B e Ty
e A a2

Lunsn
10T e P

Lo 11 10
44000 TR

| LA Gl i | ESOROIN | MSOHADEN
[reeey

Dovon County
Council
E riti cinread anbe Wimenalk g
it angpatiicin Wuralisl . Schact
Lunia =avws
[Mimca a aseea Aea”
Macvrrn = Ve U =
Fennisstan Fropased Landscape Plan
yr
by Waring == — —
1Al 4115 BT L
LT AL T Temw | e
10-1-1008- DR-L- 800 P3

G wa)| epuaby



Agenda Iltem 5

Appendix |
To PTE/19/33

Planning Conditions
STANDARD COMMENCEMENT

1. The development shall commence within five years of the date of this permission.
REASON: In accordance with Section 91 of the Town and Country Planning Act 1990.
STRICT ACCORDANCE WITH PLANS

2. The development shall be carried out in strict accordance with the details shown on the
approved drawings and documents numbered and entitled NPS-DR-A-(00)-001 revision
P2, (02)22 revision P01, HBS-DR-C-(00)-062 revision P1, (04)02 revision P09, (04)01
revision P09, (00)03 revision P02, (02)20 revision P08, (03)01 revision P03, HBS-DR-
C-(00)-060 revision P3, HBS-DR-C-(00)-061 revision P3, DR-L-800 revision P3, School
Travel Plan (dated 22 January 2019), Sustainable Drainage Statement (Ref. 19-1-1013
SuDS/MW/RevB; Rev. B; dated 26th November 2018), Landscape & Ecological
Management & Maintenance Plan (dated 15.01.19), and Phase 1 Habitat Survey &
Ecological Appraisal (dated June 2019) except as varied by the conditions below.

REASON: To ensure that the development is carried out in accordance with the approved
details.

CONDITIONS (PRE-COMMENCEMENT)
CONSTRUCTION MANAGEMENT

3. No development shall take place until a Construction Management Scheme (CMS) has
been submitted to and approved in writing by the County Planning Authority. The CMS
shall be based on the ‘Construction Traffic Management Plan’ (Revision A) submitted as
part of the application but shall be updated and finalised to include:

(a) Timetable/programme of works;

(b) The proposed surface water drainage management system which will serve the
development site for the full period of its construction. This temporary surface water
drainage management system must satisfactorily address both the rates and
volumes, and quality, of the surface water runoff from the construction site;

(c) Measures for traffic management including routing of vehicles to and from the site,
details of the number/frequency and sizes of vehicles;

(d) Days and hours of building operations and deliveries;

(e) Location of loading, unloading and storage of plant and materials;

(f) Location of contractor compound and facilities;

(9) Provision of boundary fencing/hoarding;

(h) Parking of vehicles of site personnel, operatives and visitors;

(i) Wheel washing;

() Dust and noise control;
(k) Recycling and waste reduction measures during construction; and
)] Tree/root protection measures for vegetation to be retained.

The development shall be implemented in accordance with the approved scheme.
REASON: To minimise the impact of construction on nearby residents and the local

highway network in accordance with Policy S1 (Sustainable Development Criteria) and
Policy S11 (Pollution) of the Teignbridge Local Plan 2013-2033.

Page 35



Agenda Item 5

DRAINAGE DESIGN

4, No part of the development hereby permitted shall be commenced until the detailed design
of the proposed permanent surface water drainage management system has been
submitted to, and approved in writing by, the County Planning Authority, in consultation with
Devon County Council as the Lead Local Flood Authority. The design of this permanent
surface water drainage management system:

e will be in accordance with the principles of sustainable drainage systems, and those set
out in the Sustainable Drainage Statement (Ref. 19-1-1013 SuDS/MW/RevB; Rev. B;
dated 26th November 2018) as well as Drainage Layout Sheet 1 of 3 (drawing No.
HBS-DR-C-(00)-060; Rev. P3; dated 12" July 2019), Drainage Layout Sheet 2 of 3
(drawing No. HBS-DR-C-(00)-061; Rev. P3; dated 12th July 2019) and Drainage Layout
Sheet 3 of 3 (HBS-DR-C-(00)-062; Rev. P1; dated 23rd November 2018);

¢ include the layout of the attenuation tank;

¢ include a cross section depicting the construction formation and drainage details of the
3G artificial turf pitch; and

¢ include the full details of the adoption and maintenance arrangements.

No part of the development shall be occupied until the surface water management scheme
serving that part of the development has been provided in accordance with the approved
details and the drainage infrastructure shall be retained and maintained for the lifetime of
the development.

REASON: To ensure that surface water runoff from the development is managed in
accordance with the principles of sustainable drainage systems in accordance with Policy
EN4 (Flood Risk) of the Teignbridge Local Plan 2013-2033.

Advice: Refer to Devon County Council’s Sustainable Drainage Guidance.
CONDITIONS (DURING CONSTRUCTION)
REPTILE MITIGATION

5. No construction access shall be gained from Parkway Road and no works shall take place
relating to the ‘Proposed Extension’ on drawing DR-L-800 Rev P3, including any associated
groundworks or works to the ‘Proposed reinstated food growing area’ shown on drawing
DR-L-800 Rev P3, until a Reptile Mitigation Plan has been submitted to and approved in
writing by the County Planning Authority. This shall include, but not be limited to:

(a) Protection measures and methods to ensure no harm to reptiles during the works;

(b) Measures to ensure no net loss of local reptile conservation status, by providing
sufficient quality, quantity and connectivity of habitat to accommodate the reptile
population in the long term.

Development shall be carried out in accordance with the approved mitigation plan.

REASON: To ensure that protected species are protected in accordance with Policy EN8
(Biodiversity Protection and Enhancement) and EN9 (Important Habitats and Features) of
the Teignbridge Local Plan 2013-2033.

FENCING

6. No works shall take place on the existing grass playing field until details of a fence to
enclose the artificial turf pitch have been submitted and approved by the County Planning
Authority. These details shall include:

(@) The location of the fence;
(b) The height of the fence;
(c) A detailed elevation of the fence including colour and noise reduction measures; and

Page 36



Agenda Iltem 5

(d) Methods of securing the artificial turf pitch when not in use.
The approved fence shall be erected prior to the first use of the artificial turf pitch.

REASON: To ensure a safe and well-designed site in accordance with Policy S1
(Sustainable Development Criteria) and Policy S2 (Quality Development) of the Teignbridge
Local Plan 2013-2033.

MATERIALS

No above ground works associated with the extension, labelled as ‘Proposed Extension’ on

drawing DR-L-800 Rev P3, shall take place until details of the materials/colours to be used

for the:

(a) coloured rendered panels shown on drawings (04)02 Rev P09 and (04)01 Rev P09;

(b) the area labelled ‘grey concrete paving slabs or brickwork’ shown on drawings
(04)02 Rev P09 and (04)01 Rev P09; and

(c) the retaining wall depicted on drawing (02)20 Rev P08 shown between the labels
‘Start of new retaining wall approx. 450 high’

have been submitted to and approved in writing by the County Planning Authority.
The development shall be carried out in accordance with these approved details.

REASON: To ensure the development achieves high quality design in accordance with
Policy S2 (Quality Development) of the Teignbridge Local Plan 2013-2033.

LIGHTING

No lighting shall be installed on the new extension area until a detailed lighting scheme has

been submitted to and approved in writing by the County Planning Authority. This scheme

shall include:

(a) The location, height and direction of the lighting proposed;

(b) The hours of use of the lighting and how this will be managed;

(c) The specification details of the lighting and anticipated light spill; and

(d) Confirmation from an ecologist that there will be no impact on protected species or
area of habitat.

Any lighting installed on the new extension area shall be implemented in accordance with
the approved scheme.

REASON: To ensure that protected species and habitats are conserved and protected in
accordance with Policy EN8 (Biodiversity Protection and Enhancement) and EN9
(Important Habitats and Features) of the Teignbridge Local Plan 2013-2033.

LANDSCAPING/TREES

No above ground works associated with the extension, labelled as ‘Proposed Extension’ on
drawing DR-L-800 Rev P3, shall take place until a Landscape and Ecological Management
Plan (LEMP), which is consistent with the submitted Landscape & Ecological Management
& Maintenance Plan (dated 15.01.19); Phase 1 Habitat Survey & Ecological Appraisal
(dated June 2019); and the Proposed Landscape Plan (ref. DR-L-800 Rev P3), has been
submitted to and approved in writing by the County Planning Authority. The LEMP shall
include:
(a) An annotated plan illustrating the measures to mitigate/enhance ecology and

landscape on the site, including:

(i) The recommendations set out in section 7 of the Phase 1 Habitat Survey &

Ecological Appraisal (dated June 2019);
(i) The finalised location of the replacement planting;

Page 37



Agenda Item 5

10.

11.

12.

(iii) schedules of plants/grass, giving species, planting sizes and proposed
numbers and densities;

(iv) Method statements for planting, grass reestablishment following
construction, maintenance and management, along with a
timetable/schedule.

The development shall be implemented in accordance with the approved LEMP. All
planting, landscaping and ecological enhancements shall be implemented in the first
planting and seeding season after the completion of the extension. Planting and

landscaping shall be maintained for a minimum of 5 years following implementation.

REASON: To ensure that protected species and habitats are conserved and enhanced in
accordance with Policy EN8 (Biodiversity Protection and Enhancement) and EN9
(Important Habitats and Features) of the Teignbridge Local Plan 2013-2033.

ECOLOGY

No vegetation clearance shall take place during the bird nesting season (01 March to 31
August inclusive) unless the developer has been advised by a suitably qualified ecologist
that clearance will not disturb nesting birds and a record of this is kept. Such checks shall
be carried out in the 14 days prior to clearance works commencing.

REASON: To minimise impacts on nesting wild birds and ensure that no birds take up
residence in the intervening period in accordance with paragraph 170 of the NPPF and the
wildlife and Countryside Act 1981 (as amended).

CONDITIONS (OPERATIONAL)

PLAYING FIELD - HOURS OF USE

The use of the artificial turf pitch, labelled as ‘Proposed 3G Pitch’ on drawing DR-L-800 Rev
P3, shall be limited to 09:00 to 19:00 hours.

REASON: To protect the living conditions of nearby residents in accordance with Policy S1
(Sustainable Development Criteria) of the Teignbridge Local Plan 2013-2033.

PLAYING FIELD — LIGHTING

No lighting shall be installed or utilised on the artificial turf pitch.

REASON: To ensure that protected species and habitats are conserved and protected in
accordance with Policy EN8 (Biodiversity Protection and Enhancement) and EN9

(Important Habitats and Features) of the Teignbridge Local Plan 2013-2033.

INFORMATIVE NOTE

The Designing Out Crime Team has provided the following recommendations to improve security
at the site:

Door and Windows

Doors and windows for the proposed extension are advised to be tested and certified to a
nationally recognised security standard which is independently assessed by an approved 3rd party
certification body. For example external doorsets should meet one of the following standards as a
minimum or equivalent:

PAS 24:2016
LPS 1175 Issue 7 SR2
STS 201 or STS 202 BR2.

Page 38



Agenda Iltem 5

Specifiers should consider the high frequency of operation of some doorsets within educational
establishments. BS 6375 sets out the performance requirements for doorsets and specifiers are
advised to consider the classifications within this standard to ensure that doorsets can adequately
meet the demand placed upon them.

e Where there is a requirement for an internal doorset to be secure, these should be
certificated to one of the following standards: PAS 24: 2016, LPS 1175 Issue 7 SR1 or
above STS 202 BR 1 or above.

Windows should meet as a minimum one of the following standards or equivalent:
e LPS 1175 SR1 or higher or

e STS 202 BR1 or higher

e All ground floor and easily accessible glazing should incorporate glass successfully tested
to BS EN 356:2000 Glass in building. Security glazing — resistance to manual attack to
category P1A.

e Roof light apertures should be protected by roof lights certificated to LPS 1175 SR1 or STS
202 BR1.

Alarm

A suitably designed, fit for purpose, monitored intruder alarm system is recommended for the
development. For police response, the system must comply with the requirements of the ACPO
Security Systems Policy.

Page 39






T obed

Delegated Schedule — 18th September 2019 — Summary

PTE/19/34

Development Management Committee

18 September 2019

District Location Application Proposal Electoral Division [Decision
Number
Teignbridge District Denistone and DCC/4078/2018 |Consolidating application for the [Kingsteignton & Conditional
Council Broadway Ball Clay winning and working of consented |Teign Estuary Approval
Quarries, mineral reserves, the realignment
Kingsteignton, of the Ugbrooke Stream and
Devon, associated operations at Denistone
TQ12 3PW and Broadway Quarries, near
Kingsteignton, Devon
Exeter City Council Land to the north of |DCC/4095/2018 |Proposed pedestrian/cycle bridge [Pinhoe & Conditional
the railway line forming section 8 of the E4 cycle |Mincinglake Approval
adjacent to Summer route, including associated
Lane, Exeter approach ramps, planting,
relocation of the WPD compound
and realignment of school running
track
Teignbridge District Newton Abbot DCC/4104/2018 |Extension of footbridge across the [Newton Abbot Conditional
Council Railway Station, down relief line at Newton Abbot  |North Approval
Station Road, Railway Station with new station
Newton Abbot, building to provide an eastern
TQ12 2JE access into the railway station,
including replacement car parking
and landscaping
Teignbridge District Kenbury Wood DCC/4110/2019 |A retrospective application for the |Exminster & Haldon|Conditional

Council

Resource Recovery
Facility, Old Dawlish
Road, Kennford,
Devon,

EX6 7XD

erection of an elevator with a
covered picking station, conveyor
and the relocation of a previously
permitted dry materials store
facility

Approval

/. Wa}| epuaby



2 obed

District Location Application Proposal Electoral Division [Decision
Number
Teignbridge District Kenbury Wood DCC/4111/2019 |Section 73 Planning application for [Exminster & Haldon|Conditional
Council Landfill Site, Old Variation of Conditions 11 (Hours Approval
Dawlish Road, of Use) and 13 (Lights) attached to
Kennford, planning permissions
EX6 7XD 16/01969/DCC (Consolidating
application for retention of waste
facility) and 18/01566/DCC
(Variation of conditions 1, 15, 18,
21, 25 and 27)
Teignbridge District Heathfield Landfill, |DCC/4115/2019 |Conversion of 2 existing landfill Kingsteignton & Conditional
Council John Acres Lane, gas engines and siting of a third Teign Estuary Approval
Fosterville, gas engine, transformer, gas kiosk
Sandygate, and ancillary pipework on an
TQ12 3GP extension to the gas compound, to
enable the engines to link to the
natural gas connection, to
generate electricity for the local
grid during periods of high demand
North Devon District  [South Molton DCC/4119/2019 |New single storey 2 classroom South Molton Conditional
Council Community College, modular teaching building with Approval
Alswear Old Road, associated WC facilities and level
South Molton, access
EX36 4LA
West Devon Borough |Recycling Centre, DCC/4120/2019 |Groundworks to reduce the levels [Okehampton Rural |Conditional
Council Merrivale Road, sufficiently to tarmac and provide Approval

Exeter Road
Industrial Estate,
Okehampton,
EX20 1UD

car parking facility, including the
installation of perimeter fencing
and gated access

/. Wa}| epuaby



oy obed

District Location Application Proposal Electoral Division [Decision
Number
Teignbridge District Starcross Primary DCC/4125/2019 |To demolish and rebuild failed Exminster & Haldon|Conditional
Council School, Road from boundary wall, including new Approval
Church Street to expansion joints and piers, re-
Royal British Legion, using existing brickwork wherever
Starcross, possible
EX6 8QD
East Devon District Unit 42, Road to DCC/4128/2019 |Construction of a single external  [Exmouth Conditional
Council Greendale Business bay and the installation of a Approval
Park, Greendale canopy structure over three
Business Park, existing external bays
Woodbury Salterton,
EX5 1EW
Torridge District Monkleigh Primary |DCC/4129/2019 |Extension of existing school Bideford East Conditional
Council School, Monkleigh, building to provide additional Approval
Bideford, classroom and addition of W.C.
EX39 5JY
Mid Devon District Cullompton Waste  [DCC/4130/2019 |Proposed building to house Cullompton & Conditional
Council Water Treatment additional plant and equipment Bradninch Approval
Works, Exeter Road,
Cullompton,
EX15 1EA
Teignbridge District Denbury Primary DCC/4134/2019 |The replacement of Blocks 02 and [Ashburton & Conditional
Council School, West Street, 03 with a new single teaching Buckfastleigh Approval

Denbury,
TQ12 6DP

block

/. Wa}| epuaby






	Agenda
	4 County Council Development: Teignbridge District:  Provision of a new link road connecting the A382 to West Golds Way, Land between the A382 and West Golds Way near the Newton Abbot Hospital, Newton Abbot
	5 County Council Development: Teignbridge:  Construction of a single storey extension to the existing school building and the alteration of the existing grass playing field to a 3G pitch, including associated landscaping and car parking, Chudleigh Church of England Community Primary School, Lawn Drive, Chudleigh
	7 Delegated Action - Schedules (to include ROMPS Actions) and Summary Schedule

